
Please ask for:
Lisa Young
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5340
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:
lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk

6 March 2020

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Policy and Organisation Board
DATE: 16 March 2020
TIME:: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Council Chamber
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young

PAUL GRANT 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

Councillor Mrs Jones (Mayor) and Councillor Hook (Chairman)
Councillor Burgess (Vice Chairman)

Councillor Bateman
Councillor Carter
Councillor Chegwyn
Councillor Mrs Cully
Councillor Foster-Reed
Councillor Herridge

Councillor Hylands
Councillor Jessop
Councillor Murphy
Councillor Pepper
Councillor Philpott

Public Document Pack



FIRE PRECAUTIONS

(To be read by the Mayor if members of the public are present)

In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building.

IMPORTANT NOTICE:

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request.

If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page).

NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Policy and Organisation Board
16 March 2020

AGENDA

RECOMMENDED 
MINUTE FORMAT

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

3.  MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD HELD ON 4 
FEBRUARY 2020 

4.  DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

(NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Thursday 12 March 2020.  The total 
time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes).

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

(NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms 
of reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) 
shall have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on 
Thursday 12 March 2020).

6.  CROSS REFERENCE FROM STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE 

Attached is a copy of the Audit Plan that was considered by the 
Standards and Governance Committee on the 12 February 2020 
together with the Minute extract and Resolution 

7.  MICROSOFT ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT AWARD OF 
CONTRACT 

For the board to award a contract exceeding the EU Threshold in 
accordance with Contract Procedure Rules (CPR) Part 4 – Schedule 
13 Para 15.4.

8.  LEASEHOLD BUILDING INSURANCE 



Policy and Organisation Board
16 March 2020

To seek the Council’s permission to waive the requirement within 
contract procedure rules (CPR) to obtain three quotes to procure a 
new building insurance for leasehold properties in housing owned 
stock. 

9.  PARTNERSHIP FOR SOUTH HAMPSHIRE 

The Council is a constituent member of the Partnership for South 
Hampshire (“PfSH“), which was formerly known as the Partnership 
for Urban South Hampshire and referred to as “PUSH”. The 
organisation has proposed a revised governance agreement to deal 
with the recent change of name, as well as a slightly amended 
geography and other administrative arrangements, which the Council 
needs to enter into to confirm its approval to the amendments. 

10.  ANY OTHER ITEMS 



Policy and Organisation Board
4 February 2020

1

A MEETING OF THE POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD
WAS HELD ON 4 FEBRUARY 2020

 

Councillors Bateman, Burgess, Carter, Chegwyn, Mrs Cully, Foster-Reed, Herridge, Hook, 
Hylands, Jessop, Pepper and Philpott

38. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

There were none. 

39. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Hylands declared a pecuniary interest in the late agenda item, concerning 
changes to business rate reliefs and discounts. He left the room and took no part in the 
discussion or voting thereon. 

40. MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD HELD ON 20 NOVEMBER 2019 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 20th November 2019 be signed as a 
true and correct record. 

41. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

There were none. 

42. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

There were none. 

43. CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Corporate Policy and Community Safety 
presenting the Board with a draft Climate Change Strategy for approval, produced through 
the Climate Change Working Group (CCWG) which was established by Full Council on 
24/07/19.  

Members welcomed the report and commended the work of the Working Group. 
It was proposed that the Working Group to become a function of the Community Board as it 
was felt that the remit of the group sat better with the remit of the Community Board, 
particularly with the desire for community involvement. 

Members acknowledged that the Climate Change should be a consideration for all Boards 
and all functions of the Council. It was suggested that the Council’s report template be 
amended to include a climate change consideration for every report. 

Members acknowledged that there was a financial commitment to the improvement of 
education of residents within the budget. 

Agenda Item 3



Policy and Organisation Board
4 February 2020

2

Members felt that it was important that all aspects of recycling and existing contracts for 
waste removal as it was felt that there was room for improvement across the spectrum. 

The Board acknowledged that there was potential for Climate Change to become its own 
Service Board in future as development of the strategy progressed. 

Members suggested that consideration also needed to be given to planning decisions 
including electric car points and also that electric cars should be considered for the 
Council’s fleet. 

Members recognised that there was a desire to engage with the public to move addressing 
climate change forward. 

Members recognised that the document needed to evolve and be revaluated and that this 
would be taken annually. 

RESOLVED:  
 That the Climate Change Strategy and the development of an associated action plan 

be approved, 
 To confirm that the CCWG will have an ongoing role in overseeing the governance of 

the Council’s Climate Change Strategy by undertaking those actions referred to in 
paragraph 2.7 of this report, and will report back to the Community Board in future on 
this issue.

44. CAPITAL STRATEGY REPORT 2020/21 

Consideration was given to a report of the Borough Treasurer seeking the recommendation 
to Council of the Capital Strategy is requirement of the Prudential code for Capital Finance 
in Local Authorities (Prudential Code), and the Treasury Management in the Public 
Services Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes (Treasury Management 
Code) which were updated in December 2017.

RESOLVED: That the Policy and Organisation Board recommend Council approve the 
Capital Strategy for 2020/21.

45. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY & MRP POLICY 

Consideration was given to a report of the Borough Treasurer outlining the Council’s policy 
for charging unfinanced capital expenditure to revenue (MRP) together with the expected 
treasury operations for this period.

RESOLVED: Policy and Organisation Board recommend Council to approve:

 Minimum Revenue Provision Policy, as identified in 2.1

 The Treasury Management Strategy, as identified in 2.2

46. INVESTMENT STRATEGY REPORT 2020/21 



Policy and Organisation Board
4 February 2020

3

Consideration was given to a report of the Borough Treasurer seeking the recommendation 
of approval by full Council of an Investment Strategy which is a requirement of the 
Prudential code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (Prudential Code), and the Treasury 
Management in the Public Services Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes 
(Treasury Management Code) which were updated in December 2017.

RESOLVED: The Policy and Organisation Board recommend that Full Council approve the 
Investment Strategy as detailed in this report

 

47. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

CHANGES TO BUSINESS RATE RELIEFS AND DISCOUNTS

The report had not been available previously as a decision on the relief was not made until 
after the publication of the agenda. If the decision to accept the proposals was delayed the 
billing for the year would be incorrect and a rebilling would be required at the expense of 
the Council. 

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that there are less than 6 public 
houses with a ratable value of over £100,000 and that about 25 in total that would be 
eligible. 

The Board was advised that there would be over 200 business that would benefit from the 
proposals for Retail Discount and Public House Relief. 

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that public houses generally were 
businesses that predominantly sold alcohol for consumption on the premises and 
businesses that did not meet the criteria could be eligible for other reliefs. It was also 
advised that if a business did not have the relief but felt that they should qualify, then they 
could apply and it would be granted if they meet the qualifying criteria.

The Board acknowledged that it was a difficult time for public houses and that currently a 
quarter of those in Gosport were available to lease or purchase. 

RESOLVED: That amendments to the Discretionary Rate Relief Policies relating to Local 
Newspaper Relief, Retail Discount (see Appendix B) and to add relief for Public Houses as 
detailed in Appendix A be approved. 
 

 

By reason of special circumstances, the Chairman determined that the following item be 
considered at this meeting notwithstanding the fact that the item had not been available for 
public inspection in accordance with the provisions of Section 100B(4)(a) of the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985.



Policy and Organisation Board
4 February 2020

4

48. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

RESOLVED: That the press and public be excluded from the meeting as the report contains 
details of the financial affairs of the Council and a third party at a time when contract 
documents are not finally concluded. Completion of the contract could be prejudiced if this 
information was made public which may have an adverse impact on the contract 
arrangements to the detriment of the Council tax payers. Therefore the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

49. INSURANCE SERVICES TENDER 

Consideration was given to an exempt report of the Head of Benefits, Procurement and 
Insurance. 

RESOLVED: That the recommendation in report be approved. 

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 6.48 pm



GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL

 CROSS REFERENCE

TO: POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD
16 MARCH 2020

FROM: STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
12 FEBRUARY 2020

TITLE: External Audit – Audit Planning Report 2019-20

AUTHOR: KEVIN SUTER 

Attached is a copy of the Audit Plan that was considered by the Standards and 
Governance Committee on the 12 February 2020 together with the Minute 
extract and Resolution 

RECOMMENDATION: that the Audit Planning Report 2019/20 be recommended to 
the Policy and Organisation Board as those charged with governance

RESOLOUTION: 

 That the  Audit Planning Report 2019/20 be reviewed and the risks 
and areas of focus we have identified, and our planned response to 
them be noted. 

 the Audit Planning Report 2019/20 be recommended to the Policy 
and Organisation Board as those charged with governance.

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Minute Extract 

Consideration was given to a report if the External Auditor setting out work that was planned 
to be undertaken to enable the issuing of the audit opinion on the financial statements and 
value for money conclusion for 2019/20.

The Committee was advised that the review was to identify the risk and focus of the report 
and to recommend it to the Policy and Organisation Board.

It was highlighted to the Committee the identified risks the identified significant risks as well 
as other areas of audit focus, a new area of focus for the year given the proposed changes 
to 2020/21 accounting code.

It was summarised that there was no change to how risk was calculated and that the 
approach. The timetable was on schedule and for an interim report in February/March and 
the year end in July. 

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that the materiality figures were 
the same as last year. 

RESOLVED: 

 Review the Audit Planning Report 2019/20 and note the risks and 
areas of focus we have identified, and our planned response to 
them. 

 Recommend the Audit Planning Report 2019/20 to the Policy and 
Organisation Board as those charged with governance.



This page is intentionally left blank



Gosport Borough
Council
Audit planning report
Year ended 31 March 2020

January 2020



2

28 January 2020

Dear Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board Members

Audit planning report

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide the
Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the
2019/20 audit in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of
Audit Practice, the Statement of Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other
professional requirements. It is also to ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee/Board’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Council, and outlines our
planned audit strategy in response to those risks. Our planning procedures remain ongoing, and we will update the Standards & Governance
Committee and Policy & Organisation Board should any further matters come to our attention that impact the assessment of key issues or our
audit scope.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board and
management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 12 February 2020 as well as understand whether there are other matters which
you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully

Kevin Suter

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Enc

Gosport Borough Council
Town Hall, High Street
Gosport
Hampshire PO12 1EB



3

Contents

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-
of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors
and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit
Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board and management of Gosport Borough Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board , and management of Gosport Borough Council those matters we are required to
state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy
& Organisation Board , and management of Gosport Borough Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our
2019/20 audit
strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit
materiality04 Scope of our

audit05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit
timeline07 Independence08

Value for
Money Risks03

V
F
M



4

Overview of our 2019/20 audit
strategy01 01



5

Overview of our 2019/20 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Misstatements due to fraud or error Fraud risk No change in risk or
focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud
because of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that would
otherwise appear to be operating effectively.

Risk of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition, through
inappropriate capitalisation of
revenue expenditure

Fraud risk No change in risk or
focus

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to
improper revenue recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified
by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states that
auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by
the manipulation of expenditure recognition. We have assessed the risk is most
likely to occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure.

Valuation of Land and Buildings Other risk No change in risk or
focus

The value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment Properties (IP)
represent significant balances in the Council’s accounts and are subject to
valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is
required to make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to
calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet, covering both
those assets that are revalued within the year and the continuing material
accuracy of those valued in prior periods.

Pension Liability Valuation Other risk No change in risk or
focus

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council
to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding its
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by
Hampshire County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and
therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their
behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of
management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

In 2018/19, late changes were required to disclosures in the financial statements
arising from the McCloud legal judgement. There could be further impact for
2019/20 should any further developments arise.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Standards &
Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks
identified in the current year.



6

Overview of our 2019/20 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

IFRS 16 Leases Inherent risk New accounting
standard

It is currently proposed that IFRS 16 will be applicable for local authority
accounts from 01 April 2020.

There are transitional arrangements within the standard and although the
2020/21 Accounting Code of Practice for Local Authorities has yet to be issued,
CIPFA have issued some limited provisional information which begins to clarify
what the impact on local authority accounting will be. Whether any accounting
statutory overrides will be introduced to mitigate any impact remains an
outstanding issue.

Within the 2019/20 financial statements ,the Council will need to make
disclosures, required under IAS8, in relation to the expected impact of this new
standard on the 2020/21 financial statements.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Standards &
Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks
identified in the current year.



7

Overview of our 2019/20 audit strategy

Materiality

Planning
materiality

£1.29m
Performance

materiality

£0.97m Audit
differences

£64.5k

Materiality has been set at £1.291m, which represents 2% of the prior years gross expenditure on provision of services.

Performance materiality has been set at £0.968m, which represents 75% of planning materiality.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, housing revenue account and collection fund) greater than
£64.5k.  Other misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent that they merit the
attention of the Policy & Organisation Board.



8

Overview of our 2019/20 audit strategy

Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

§ Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Gosport Borough Council give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2020 and of the
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

§ Our conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts
return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

§ Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
§ Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
§ The quality of systems and processes;
§ Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and
§ Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council.

Taking the above into account, and as articulated in this audit plan, our professional responsibilities require us to assess independently the risks associated with
providing an audit opinion, and to undertake appropriate procedures in response to that assessment. Our Terms of Appointment with PSAA allow them to vary the fee
dependent on “the auditor’s assessment of risk and the work needed to meet their professional responsibilities”. PSAA are aware that the setting of scale fees has not
kept pace with the changing requirements of external audit, with increased focus on, for example, the valuations of land and buildings, the auditing of groups, the
valuation of pension obligations, the introduction of new accounting standards such as IFRS 9, 15 and 16 in recent years as well as the expansion of factors impacting
the value for money conclusion. Therefore to the extent any of these are relevant in the context of Gosport Borough Council’s audit, we will discuss these with
management as to the impact on the scale fee.



9

Audit risks02 01



10

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks

What will we do?

We will:
• Enquire of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in

place to address those risks.
• Understand the oversight given by those charged with governance of

management’s processes over fraud.
• Consider the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to

address the risk of fraud.
• Perform mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified

fraud risks, including testing of journal entries and other adjustments
in the preparation of the financial statements.

• Review accounting estimates for evidence of management bias.
• Evaluate the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free
of material misstatements whether caused by
fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in
a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of
its ability to manipulate accounting records
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent
financial statements by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We
identify and respond to this fraud risk on every
audit engagement.

Misstatements due to fraud or
error*

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.



11

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued)

What will we do?

We will:
• Test PPE additions using lowered testing thresholds, to ensure they are

appropriately supported by documentary evidence, and that the
expenditure incurred and capitalised is clearly capital in nature; and

• Seek to identify and understand the basis for any significant journals
transferring expenditure from non-capital codes to PPE additions or
from revenue to capital codes on the general ledger at the end of the
year.

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due to improper
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which
states that auditors should also consider the risk
that material misstatements may occur by the
manipulation of expenditure recognition.

We have assessed that the risk is most likely to
occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of
revenue expenditure, as there is an incentive to
reduce expenditure which is funded from Council
Tax. This could then result in funding of that
expenditure, that should properly be defined as
revenue, through inappropriate sources such as
capital receipts, capital grants, or borrowing.

Risk of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition,
through inappropriate
capitalisation of revenue
expenditure*

Financial statement impact

We have assessed that the risk of
fraud in revenue and expenditure
recognition is most likely to occur
through the inappropriate
capitalisation of revenue
expenditure. This would have the
impact of reducing revenue
expenditure and increasing
additions to Property, Plant and
Equipment.

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.



12

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Valuation of Land and Buildings
The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment
Properties (IP) represent significant balances in the Council’s accounts
and are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and
depreciation charges. Management is required to make material
judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the
year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

In the prior period we identified errors made in the valuation process.

We will:
• Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuers, including the adequacy of the

scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their work;
• Sample test key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation (e.g.

floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre) and challenge the key
assumptions used by the valuers;

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a 5
year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE and annually for Investment
Property. We will also consider if there are any specific changes to assets that have
occurred and whether these have been communicated to the valuers;

• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2019/20 to confirm that the remaining asset
base is not materially misstated;

• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; and
• Test to confirm that accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial

statements.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures.



13

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Pension Liability Valuation
The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the
Council to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements
regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme
administered by Hampshire County Council.

The Council’s pension fund deficit is a material estimated balance and
the Code requires that this liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance
sheet. At 31 March 2019 this totalled £38.6 million. The information
disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by the
actuary to the County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and
judgement and therefore management engages an actuary to undertake
the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to
undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the
assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

In the prior year the ‘McCloud’ judgement impacted the estimate and
resulted in an amendment of the net pension liability. We anticipate this
will again be a key assumption in estimating the pension liability. We
would expect the Authority’s actuary to be basing their assumptions
taking into account the Authority’s specific membership profile and how
it has been impacted by the judgement. We also note that there may be
further developments in this area, potentially again coming after the
balance sheet date.

We will:
• Liaise with the auditors of Hampshire County Council Pension Fund,  to obtain assurances

over the information supplied to the actuary in relation to Gosport Borough Council;
• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Aon Hewitt) including the assumptions they

have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the
National Audit Office for all Local Government sector auditors, and considering any
relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; and

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s
financial statements in relation to IAS19.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures.



14

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

IFRS 16 Leases

It is currently proposed that IFRS 16 will be applicable for local authority
accounts from 01 April 2020.

Whilst the definition of a lease remains similar to the current leasing
standard (IAS 17), for local authorities who lease a large number of assets
the new standard will have a significant impact, with nearly all current
leases being included on the balance sheet.

There are transitional arrangements within the standard and although the
2020/21 Accounting Code of Practice for Local Authorities has yet to be
issued, CIPFA have issued some limited provisional information which
begins to clarify what the impact on local authority accounting will be.
Whether any accounting statutory overrides will be introduced to mitigate
any impact remains an outstanding issue.

Within the 2019/20 financial statements ,the Council will need to make
disclosures, required under IAS8, in relation to the expected impact of this
new standard on the 2020/21 financial statements.

Until the 2020/21 Accounting Code is issued and any statutory overrides are confirmed
there remains some uncertainty in this area.
It is clear is that the Authority will need to undertake a detailed exercise to identify all
leases and capture the relevant information for the production of financial statement
information. The Authority must therefore ensure that all lease arrangements are fully
documented and they have the relevant information to draft the required disclosures in
the 2019/20 financial statements, and to support the full implementation of the standard
in the 2020/21 year.

We will:
• review the Authority’s process for detailed identification and review of the leases it

holds;
• Challenge the information recorded to ensure compliance with IFRS 16; and
• Ensure appropriate disclosures are recorded in the 2019/20 financial statements.



15

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M



16

Value for Money
Background

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion.

For 2019/20 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise
your arrangements to:

§ Take informed decisions;
§ Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
§ Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework
for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are already required
to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance statement.

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant, which the Code of
Audit Practice defines as:

“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would
be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe conclusion on
arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the nature and extent of further work
that may be required. If we do not identify any significant risks there is no requirement to carry out further
work. We consider business and operational risks insofar as they relate to proper arrangements at both sector
and organisation-specific level.

Our risk assessment therefore considers both the potential financial impact of the issues we have identified,
and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to local taxpayers, the Government and other
stakeholders.

This has resulted in the identification of no significant risks at the planning stage of our audit to date. Our
assessment is ongoing, and will be kept under review, and we will update the Standards & Governance
Committee and Policy & Organisation Board as soon as possible if risks are identified during the remainder of
our audit.

V
F
M

Proper arrangements for
securing value for money

Informed
decision making

Working with
partners and
third parties

Sustainable
resource

deployment



17

Audit materiality04 01



18

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2019/20 has been set at £1.29m. This
represents 2% of the Council’s prior year gross expenditure on provision of services. It
will be reassessed throughout the audit process. We have set materiality using gross
revenue expenditure as our expectation is that users of the Council’s accounts are
focussed on how it uses its resources to provide services to local people. We have used
2% based on our assessment of the Council’s financial position, levels of public
interest, lack of planned reorganisations and sources of borrowing. We have provided
supplemental information about audit materiality in Appendix C.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£64.5m
Planning

materiality

£1.29m

Performance
materiality

£0.97m
Audit

differences

£64.5k

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at
£0.968m which represents 75% of planning materiality. The rationale for
using 75% is based on the anticipation of identifying few or no errors during
the audit. This expectation has been built on our experience of the Council
in prior years.

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. We will report to you all
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet, housing revenue account
and collection fund. Other uncorrected misstatements, such as
reclassifications and misstatements in the cashflow statement and
movement in reserves statement or disclosures, and corrected
misstatements will be communicated to the extent that they merit the
attention of the Committee, or are important from a qualitative perspective.

Specific materiality – We have also set a materiality of £1k for
remuneration disclosures, related party transactions, members’ allowances
and exit packages, which reflects our understanding that an amount less
than our materiality would influence the economic decisions of users of the
financial statements in relation to these areas.

Key definitions

We request that the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation
Board confirm its understanding of, and agreement to, these materiality and reporting
levels.



19

Scope of our audit05 01



20

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the Council’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK).

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we
will undertake during the course of our audit.

Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
• Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO.

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy



21

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves:
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and
• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2019/20 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit, as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated.

Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and
• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.
We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for
improvement, to management and the Policy & Organisation Board. The successful use of analytics and a technologically enabled audit is an underpinning concept of
our contract with PSAA.

Internal audit:
We will regularly meet with the Head of Internal Audit, and review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports,
together with reports from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit work, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial
statements, the Narrative Statement or the Annual Governance Statement.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)



22

Audit team06 01



23

Audit team

Audit team
Audit team structure:

Working together with the Council

We are working together with officers to
identify continuing improvements in
communication and processes for the
2019/20 audit.

We will continue to keep our audit
approach under review to streamline it
where possible.

Helen Edgecombe has joined the audit as Senior. Helen has worked for EY for 7 years, and has significant experience of leading teams across a range of
local government and NHS clients.

Changes to the audit team

David White
Manager

dwhite@uk.ey.com

Kevin Suter
Associate Partner
ksuter@uk.ey.com

Helen Edgecombe
Senior

hedgecombe@uk.ey.com



24

Audit team

Use of specialists
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:

Area Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings

Management’s valuation experts:

- Savills (UK) Limited as valuers for Housing Revenue Account properties

- Capita Property & Infrastructure as valuers for General Fund properties and investment properties.

Pensions disclosure PwC as consulting actuary appointed by the NAO, and EY internal pensions specialists
Aon Hewitt – Actuary to Hampshire Pension Fund

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used;

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.



25

Audit timeline07 01



26

Audit timeline

Below is an indicative timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2019/20. The
final timetable will depend on our ability to obtain sufficient, appropriate audit evidence to support our audit opinion.
From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board and we will
discuss them with the Committee/Board Chairs as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Audit phase Timetable Audit committee timetable Deliverables

Planning:

Risk assessment and setting of scopes

Walkthrough of key systems and
processes

January

February Standards & Governance Committee Audit Planning Report

Interim audit testing and completion of
walkthrough of key systems and
processes

March Policy & Organisation Board Audit Planning Report

April

May

June

Year end audit

Audit Completion procedures

July Policy & Organisation Board Audit Results Report

Audit opinions and completion certificates

August Annual Audit Letter



27

Independence08 01



28

Independence

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in June 2016, requires that we
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.
We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements , the amounts of any future services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to
provide non-audit services that has been submitted.
We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period,
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY)
including consideration of all relationships between
the you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they
are considered to be effective, including any
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;
► Information about the general policies and process

within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.
► Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply

more restrictive independence rules than permitted
under the Ethical Standard

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person,
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;
► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any

non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;
► Written confirmation that all covered persons are independent;
► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit

services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy;
► Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services provided by us or our network firms;

and
► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

Introduction



29

Independence

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats,
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council.  Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services;
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees.
We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with the policies that you have approved.
None of the services are prohibited under the FRC's ES or the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 and the services have been approved in accordance with
your policy on pre-approval. The ratio of non audit fees to audits fees is not permitted to exceed 70%.
At the time of writing, no non-audit services have been undertaken, therefore the current ratio of non-audit fees to audit fees is zero. No additional safeguards are
required.
A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance
with Ethical Standard part 4.
There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report.

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent
and the objectivity and independence of Kevin Suter, your audit engagement partner, and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in
the financial statements.
There are no self review threats at the date of this report.

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Council.  Management threats may also arise during the provision of
a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.
There are no management threats at the date of this report.



30

Independence

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.
There are no other threats at the date of this report.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Other communications
EY Transparency Report 2019

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence
and integrity are maintained.
Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 1 July 2019 and can be found here:
https://www.ey.com/en_uk/who-we-are/transparency-report-2019



31

Appendices09 01



32

Appendix A

Fees

Planned fee
2019/20

Scale fee
2019/20

Final Fee
2018/19

£ £ £

Total Fee – Code work 40,844 40,844 44,356*
Total fees 40.844 40,844 44,356

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has published the fee scale for the audit of the 2019/20 accounts of opted-in principal local government and police bodies.

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements
of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

* Explanation for 2018/19 additional fee:

We have proposed a total additional fee of £3,512, to cover additional work on a value for money significant risk, valuations of property, plant and equipment,
and work relating to housing benefit income and expenditure. £3,130 of this amount has been agreed with management. The full additional fee remains subject
to agreement with PSAA, with PSAA also making a final decision with regard to the housing benefit element (£382).

Overall assumptions

The agreed fee presented is based on the following general assumptions:

► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

► The production of materially accurate draft accounts;

► Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;

► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and

► The Council has an effective control environment.

The outline timetable on page 27 is contingent on the above factors.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a variation to
the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the Council in advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public and formal
objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

All fees exclude VAT



33

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Standards & Governance Committee and  Policy & Organisation Board
of acceptance of terms of engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both
parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.

Audit planning report

Significant findings from
the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report

Appendix B

Required communications with Those Charged with Governance
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Standards & Governance Committee and
Policy & Organisation Board.



34

Appendix B

Required communications with Those Charged with Governance (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and

presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by
law or regulation

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
• Corrected misstatements that are significant
• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report

Fraud • Enquiries of the Policy & Organisation Board to determine whether they have knowledge
of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist

• A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit results report

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
• Disagreement over disclosures
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Audit results report



35

Appendix B

Required communications with Those Charged with Governance (continued)
Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity

and independence

Audit planning report
Audit results report

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report

Consideration of laws and
regulations

• Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation
on tipping off

• Enquiry of the Policy & Organisation Board into possible instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that
the Committee may be aware of

Audit results report

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Audit results report

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed
• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
• Any non-audit work

Audit planning report
Audit results report



36

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  required
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting.
• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
• Reading other information published with the financial statements, and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our

understanding and the financial statements; and
• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

Purpose and evaluation of materiality

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that,
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements.

Materiality determines:
• The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.



1

Board/Committee: Policy and Organisation Board
Date of Meeting: 16th March 2020
Title: MICROSOFT ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT AWARD OF 

CONTRACT
Author: Head of IT
Status: For Decision

Purpose

For the board to award a contract exceeding the EU Threshold in accordance with the 
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs) Part 4 – Schedule 13 Para 15.4.

Recommendation

That the board award a contract under the Central Buyers Consortium (CBC) Framework 
Lot 1 – Software, using a Direct Award to Phoenix Software an Awarded Supplier, for the 
supply of the Council’s Microsoft Enterprise Agreement (EA) with a combined cost of 
£193.378.98 over 3 years. 

1.0 Background

1.1 Our current EA with Microsoft expires in April 2020.  The agreement, centrally 
negotiated by Government, gives all Local Authorities access to discounted Microsoft 
Software licences and needs renewing every 3 years.

1.2  Phoenix Software have historically supplied the Council with all of its Microsoft 
software requirements as well as other system software not owned by our Business 
application vendors.  They have also assisted with our numerous migrations over the 
years including Office 2003 to 2010 and Windows XP to Windows 7.

1.3  We are currently engaged with Phoenix Software with them assisting us to generate 
our cloud migration plan and strategy.

1.4  The Council’s CPRs allow for collaborative procurement arrangements, such as the 
CBC Framework, to be entered into in order to secure value for money.  A direct award 
allowed for in the CDC Framework would mean that the Council does not need to 
advertise the contract opportunity to be the subject of a full tender exercise. This would 
negate any potential cost, staff time and effort in establishing a new relationship, 
reviewing/renewing current projects and setting up accounts and process on our systems 
if the result of a tender caused a change in supplier.

2.0 Central Buying Consortium Framework

2.1 The framework is fully compliant with OJEU and Public Contracts Regulations and 
allows us to deal with the matter by way of a direct award in order to maintain the 
continuity of our existing services, and is allowed for in the Council’s CPRs. All awarded 

Agenda Item 7



2

suppliers are assessed on their financial standing, technical ability and have the following 
insurance in place:

Employers Liability insurance – minimum of £10m

Public Liability insurance – minimum of £5m

Product Liability insurance – minimum of £5m

Professional Indemnity insurance – minimum of £2m

2.2 These software costs have been budgeted for and there is no real change 
compared to the costs for the previous contract period.

3.0 Risk Assessment.

4.1 Many of the usual and identifiable risks initially present in this type of project have 
been negated by the CBC Framework which is fully OJEU and Public Contracts 
Regulations compliant.

4.2 If a tender exercise results in a change of supplier there is the potential for; 
increased cost and or delay to the work we are conducting with Phoenix in defining our 
Cloud Strategy and Exchange migration; increased resource overheads in establishing 
a new relationship, and potential slow response to support requirements whilst these 
arrangements bed in over time, potentially impacting negatively on the day to day 
response of the IT services.

4.0 Conclusion:

The report summaries the benefits and risks of undertaking a tender exercise for 
renewal of our EA, however for best value to the Council it is considered that a Direct 
Award would avoid the time and resource expenditure associated with a tender 
resulting in a change of provider of this provision.

Financial Services comments:
The budget for the renewal of the 
Enterprise Agreement is sufficient to 
cover the cost of this award

Legal Services comments: None
Equality and Diversity: None
Risk Assessment: As contained in the report
Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures: None
Report author/Lead author: David Eland
Climate Change implications None



Board/Committee: Policy and Organisation Board 
Date of Meeting: 16 March 2020
Title: Leasehold Building Insurance 
Author: Head of Housing 
Status: For decision

Purpose

To seek the Council’s permission to waive the requirement within contract 
procedure rules (CPR) to obtain three quotes to procure a new building 
insurance for leasehold properties in housing owned stock. 

Recommendation

That the Board supports the action to waive contract procedure rules in this 
instance to allow the Council to extend the existing leasehold building 
insurance with Zurich Municipal for a further 12 months from 01 April 2020 for 
the reasons set out in this report.

1 Background

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

It is a requirement for the Council to ensure all council owned 
housing stock has the appropriate buildings insurance indemnity.

Historically, building insurance for leaseholders living in council 
owned housing blocks has been procured separately to the main 
insurance contract. 

The council owns a total of 311 leasehold properties. Existing 
building insurance is provided by Zurich Municipal and cover is due 
to cease on 01 April 2020. 

The cost of building insurance is recharged to leaseholders on an 
annual basis.

2 Report

2.1 Following a recent review of the Council’s insurance policies, the 
head of housing would like to consider bringing leasehold building 
insurance within the remit of the main insurance policy which 
provides indemnity for all housing owned stock. This will ensure 
services are delivered more efficiently and achieve cost savings.

Agenda Item 8



     2.2

     2.3

     2.4

     2.5

     2.6

Any reduction in premiums made by bringing leasehold building 
insurance within the remit of the main insurance policy will be passed 
onto leaseholders.

Prior to making any policy changes, the housing service is required to 
carry out a full review of the existing provision and consult with 
leaseholders. 

Given the tight timescales and the urgent requirement to have 
buildings insurance cover in place, the head of housing seeks 
permission to waive the requirement within CPR to obtain three 
quotes to procure cover for 2020/21 and extend cover for a further 12 
months with Zurich Municipal.

Zurich Municipal has provided a quote to extend the existing policy 
for a further year at the same rate as 2019/20 of £1.85 per £1000 
sum insured with an additional £0.10 per £1000 for Extended 
Accidental Damage. Each property’s sum insured will be subject to a 
4% uplift to account for index linking.

It is unlikely that the Council will get a more favourable quote from an 
alternative supplier for a limited term of 12 months only.

3

3.1

4

Legal

Contract Procedural Rules, Section 3, Exemptions and Collaborative 
Arrangements, Sub section 3.1 states:
‘The Council and its Boards have power to waive any requirements 
within CPR for specific projects, and any such decision may be a Key 
Decision’.

Risk Assessment

4.1

4.2

Failure to have the appropriate buildings insurance indemnity in place 
will be in breach of The Seventh Schedule, Part 1 of the lease 
between the Council and the leaseholder.

The Seventh Schedule, Part 1 requires the Lessor to insure and keep 
insured the building against loss or damage by fire and the demised 
premises under comprehensive cover.



4.3 There is a small risk of challenge from third parties for not following 
CPR but, as previously stated; CPR rules allow the requirement for 
three quotes to be waived providing the decision is a Key Decision.

5 Conclusion

5.1 Extending the existing leasehold building insurance for a further 12 
months from 01 April 2020 will allow the Council sufficient time to 
consult with leaseholders with a view to bringing future indemnity 
under the Council’s main insurance policy to achieve cost savings 
and greater efficiencies. 

Financial Services comments: No Comments
Legal Services comments: As contained in the report
Corporate Plan: Deliver effective services
Risk Assessment: As contained in the report
Background papers: None
Report author/ Lead Officer: Julie Smith, Head of Housing



This page is intentionally left blank



Board/Committee: POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD
Date of meeting: 16 MARCH 2020
Title: PARTNERSHIP FOR SOUTH HAMPSHIRE AGREEMENT
Author: CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Status: FOR DECISION

Purpose

The Council is a constituent member of the Partnership for South Hampshire (“PfSH“), 
which was formerly known as the Partnership for Urban South Hampshire and referred 
to as “PUSH”. The organisation has proposed a revised governance agreement to 
deal with the recent change of name, as well as a slightly amended geography and 
other administrative arrangements, which the Council needs to enter into to confirm 
its approval to the amendments. 

Recommendation

The Board agrees to the amendments to the PfSH governance agreement as set 
out in this report.

1.0 Background

1.1 In 2007 the Council approved the entering into of a governance agreement 
with other local authorities in South Hampshire to establish a Partnership for 
Urban South Hampshire Joint Committee. The local authority members in 
2007 were East Hampshire District Council. Eastleigh Borough Council, 
Fareham Borough Council, Gosport Borough Council, Hampshire County 
Council, Havant Borough Council, New Forest District Council, Portsmouth 
City Council, Test Valley Borough Council and Winchester City Council. Isle 
of Wight Council joined the organisation in 2013 and the governance 
agreement was subsequently revised in 2014.

1.2 This report sets out where terms of the governance agreement have been 
changed or updated. The Chief Executive is the lead Chief Executive for 
PfSH, and has had full involvement in discussing and negotiating these 
amendments. The PfSH Joint Committee has also approved these 
amendments, as have a number of partner authorities.

2.0 Report

2.1 The geography of the organisation has changed over time. Isle of Wight 
Council joined in 2013 but subsequently left PfSH in June 2019. There are 
other recent changes which will also require a revision of the governance 
agreement; the New Forest District Council is now entirely within the PfSH 
administered area, and the New Forest National Park Authority has also 
recently joined. 

Agenda Item 9



2.2 These changes require an amendment to the plan showing the PfSH area 
attached to the Agreement at Appendix 1. The inclusion of the New Forest 
National Park Authority and whole of New Forest District Council has also 
necessitated the removal of the word “urban” from the title of the organisation 
to reflect the rural nature of the National Park.
 

2.3 There are also changes to the way in which the financial commitments of 
each partner authority to the PfSH core budget is presented in the 
agreement. This is now shown by way of relative percentage contributions 
by each local authority partner reflected by the population of each local 
authority area within the PfSH area. These are as follows:

 Southampton City Council 13.0%
 Portsmouth City Council 19.5%
 Hampshire County Council 28.2%
 Eastleigh Borough Council 6.5%
 Fareham Borough Council 6.5%
 Gosport Borough Council 4.3%
 Havant Borough Council 6.5%
 Test Valley Borough Council 2.2%
 Winchester City Council 1.1%
 East Hampshire District Council 1.1%
 New Forest DC 10.1%
 New Forest NPA 1.0%

The lower percentage required of Southampton City Council reflects their 
provision of Finance and Legal support to PfSH. Additional contributions to 
specific initiatives may be requested of, and made, by individual authorities.

2.4 In terms of voting rights these have been slightly tightened up to ensure that 
Hampshire, Portsmouth and Southampton, who each have a power of veto, 
can now only exercise that power if they are either present at the meeting or 
have indicated their intention to use such power in advance to the PfSH 
Monitoring Officer.

2.5 The agreement now formally recognises the role of the Chief Executives‘ 
Group which is chaired by the Chief Executive as PfSH Lead Chief Executive.

2.6 Indemnity provisions have been clarified whereby if a local authority is 
appointed as “Lead Authority” in respect of a particular area, the commitment 
of the partner authorities to indemnify the Lead Authority is limited to those 
matters for which it is appointed to consider, and in accordance with each 
partner authority’s pro-rata share.

2.7 The business planning commitments of PfSH are amended so that this is no 
longer an annual commitment. Instead this is now left open with the intention 
of business plans covering a longer period of 3-5 years.

3.0 Conclusion



3.1 This report sets out the amendments to the governance agreement for PfSH. 
If the Board is minded to approve the amendments on behalf of the Council 
the Borough Solicitor is empowered to seal the governance agreement to 
give effect to this decision.

Financial Services comments: Contained within the report
Legal Services comments: Contained within the report
Crime and Disorder: N/A
Equality and Diversity: N/A
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

N/A

Climate Change implications: PfSH creates a multi-authority joint committee 
that enables its constituent members to better 
approach regional planning and environmental 
concerns and pressures caused by climate 
change.

Corporate Plan: Membership of PfSH assists in a number of 
areas; it helps to enhance the environment, 
develop the economy and also helps the Council 
to deliver effective services, all through 
partnership working on a sub-regional basis.

Risk Assessment: Non-approval of the amendments to the 
governance agreement means reverting back to 
the previous agreement and could mean that 
there is dispute in future regarding the rules 
setting out the nature of the PfSH obligations 
between the constituent authorities.

Background Papers:
Appendices:
Report Author/Lead Officer: Paul Grant, Borough Solicitor and Monitoring 

Officer



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting of the board held on 4 February 2020
	6 CROSS REFERENCE FROM STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
	Minute Extract
	Gosport Borough Council 2019-20 Audit Planning Report

	7 MICROSOFT ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT AWARD OF CONTRACT
	8 Leasehold building insurance
	9 Partnership for South Hampshire

